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Musical Preludeñstarts at 7:15 p.m., featuring 
selections from 19th Century Salem Academy  

Teachers, Amelia and Lisetta Van Vleck and father 
Carl Van Vleck. Under the direction of UNCSA 

 professors Glenn Siebert and Robert Rocco 
Č 

Annual Oration by Johanna Metzger Brown 
Curator of Moravian Decorative Arts at  

Old Salem Museums and Gardens:  
òa place of peace and a dwelling of blessingó  

Č 

2021 Archie K. Davis Award Presentation 
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   126th Annual MeetingñOctober 19 
by Paul F. Knouse, Jr. and Johnnie P. Pearson 

The 2021 Annual Meeting of the Wachovia Historical Society will be livestreamed via You Tube on 

Tuesday evening, October 19, 2021, beginning at 7:30 p.m.  As always, a delightful musical prelude will 

precede the meeting, beginning at 7:15 p.m.  The event will be 

livestreamed from Calvary Moravian Church in downtown Winston -

Salem. Due to pandemic concerns, there is no in-person attendance. 
 

During this yearõs meeting, you will hear a review of the current ac-

tivities and programs of the Society, and new Board members will be 

elected with their terms beginning in January 2022.  We also look for-

ward to announcing the winner of the 2021 Archie K. Davis Award.    
 

This yearõs annual oration will be delivered by Johanna Metzger 

Brown (photo at right). Johanna is Curator of Moravian Decorative Arts 

at Old Salem Museums and Gardens in Winston-Salem, NC., and she is 

also an Advisory Member of the WHS Board.  Her oration recognizes the 

250th Anniversary of Salem Academy and College (1772-2022). Johan-

naõs oration is entitled, òa place of peace and a dwelling of blessingó: The Early History of 

the Salem Girlsõ Boarding School in Commemoration of the 250th Anniversary of the 

Founding of Salem Academy and College.  And for more information on Salemõs 250th Anniver-

sary events, see page 10.  
 

Johanna has a BA in American Studies and Anthropology from Salem College and an MA in History 

Museum Studies from the Cooperstown Graduate Program in Cooperstown, New York. In 1991, after 

completing her MA, Johanna began working at Old Salem where she has served in various collections 

management and curatorial positions. Although her primary research focus is the Moravian decorative 

arts collection at Historic Old Salem, Johanna also works with the collections of the Museum of Early 

Southern Decorative Arts (MESDA).   

 

She has written for a variety of publications including Ceramics in America, The Journal of Early 

Southern Decorative Arts, The Magazine Antiques, and Antiques and Fine Art and lectures regularly on 

Moravian and southern material culture. Johanna co-curated Art in Clay: Masterworks of North Caroli-

na Earthenware with Luke Beckerdite and Robert Hunter. The exhibit was co-sponsored by Old Salem 

Museums and Gardens, the Chipstone Foundation, and the Caxambas Foundation. More recently, Jo-

hanna curated the Dianne Furr Moravian Decorative Arts Gallery in the Horton Museum Center at Old 

Salem. ÐWT 
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 Humility is a hallmark virtue for any good Moravian and for all of us as 

well. But there comes a point in history when it is good to glance back, and 

even if with a small amount of pride, survey the accomplishments of a life or 

organization. This is that time in the life of the revered and enduring Wachovia 

Historical Society.  

In 1995, Brad Rauschenberg authored, òThe History of the Wachovia His-

torical Society, 1895 to 1995ó which is a glorious testament to the achieve-

ments of an organization that grew out of the missions effort of the Moravians 

to the West Indies, Africa, South America, Greenland, Jamaica and yes, the 

small tract in North America known as òWachovia.ó Collecting artifacts from 

these points around the world became a passion for the Young Menõs Mission-

ary Society and after reaching America, their mission was to preserve these and the items added from 

their ancestors from Germany. Some of these items remained in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, where there 

is a noteworthy collection, and some came down to the Wachovia Tract. Over the years, the collection 

grew to include hand-crafted furniture, household tools, earthenware, firearms, literature, paintings, 

maps, and scientific and professional relics. In 1907, Julius Lineback and Fred Crist entered a portion 
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of the collection in the Jamestown Ter-Centennial held in Norfolk, 

VA which launched the Wachovia Historical Society collection into 

a nationally acclaimed and recognized collection winning a Silver 

Award. As early as 1893, a museum for the WHS collection in Sa-

lem had existed. In 1894, an inventory was done of the collection 

and the Executive Committee of the Young Men'sõ Missionary  

Society began its search for a 

permanent custodian of the 

collection. Thus, on March 

18, 1895, a committee drew 

up the Bylaws and Articles of 

Incorporation.  
 

(continued on page 4 Č) 
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With 36 affirmative votes, the Wachovia His-

torical Society, Inc. was born with Henry Fries 

Shaffner as its first President. 
 

The collection grew rapidly over the next few decades 

with entire collections accessioned from local resident families and even the US Treasury Department 

and the Smithsonian Institution. Small household items of all kinds were donated and larger items in-

cluding the Hattie Butner stagecoach, the La France fire pumper, and Nissen covered wagons were re-

ceived into the collection. A major acquisition took place in 1931 with the Scroggs collection of Native 

American artifacts which was later added to by the donation of the Douglas Rights Native American 

Collection and the Foltz collection comprising over 20,000 items and was acclaimed as one of the larg-

est and finest Native American collections in existence.  
 

The WHS collection has seen several locations. The first museum was mentioned as being in the Ge-

mein Haus in Salem in 1775, and subsequently various other locations were proposed over the years. 

However, after the Young Menõs Missionary Society was organized in 1841, they became the caretakers 

for the collections, and the museum was moved to the Third House on Main Street in 1847. Soon 

thereafter, however, in 1849, the YMMS raised funds to contribute to a building that housed a museum 

and other offices on Main Street, near the Single Brothersõ House. That building no longer exists. After 

1855 the museum was relocated to the Boysõ School on Salem Square. An addition, called the Hall of 

History, was added to the Boysõ School in 1937 to accommodate their expanding collections. This 

building was razed in 1985 to allow the reconstruction of the original Boysõ School Piazza outbuildings. 

Since the Wachovia Historical Society and Old Salem had reached an agreement in 1953 that Old Salem 

would lease the collection from the Wachovia Historical Society and assume its management, the arti-

facts from the Hall of History continued under the oversight of Old Salem.  
 

Aside from the collecting and preserving, Wachovia Historical Society has been an integral part in 

the development of the Wachovia Tract, especially in the purchase of the Hans Wagner tract and the 

founding of Bethabara Park in 1903 and collaborating in the incorporation and restoration of Old Sa-

lem, Inc. over the four decades from the 1950õs through the 1980õs. The Frank Jones Photography Col-

lection, nearly 34,000 photos, which is now part of Digital Forsyth, exists because of the WHS dona-

tion of the collection to the Forsyth County Library. The òMuseum of Manó at Wake Forest University, 

now the LAM Anthropology Museum, was the recipient of the extensive Rights Indian artifact collec-

tion from WHS mentioned earlier. In addition, the Hattie Butner stagecoach was given to the Village of 

Clemmons and is on exhibit in their Town Hall. The Wachovia Historical Society has raised thousands 

of dollars and man hours to assist in renovations and restorations throughout the Wachovia tract and in 

underwriting the costs of the publishing of books and papers on Moravian history and of the region.                                                    

                                                      (Continued on page 5 Č) 
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Is the WHS ready to hang up its hat and sit on 

its laurels? Quite the opposite. As the title to a 

contemporary song goes, òWeõve Only Just Be-

gunó! When our $25,000 Endowment Fund to 

Old Salem Museums & Gardens was recently re-

named for Arthur Spaugh, he wrote a heart-felt 

and humble thank you note saying, òWhatever 

we do in life, we stand on the shoulders of those 

who have gone before.ó You, the past and pre-

sent members of WHS, are those shoulders. Thank 

you for standing with us as we move forward.  

 ÐWT                                                                
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Annual Meeting  
Musical Prelude  

Wachovia Historical Society (WHS)  tradi-

tionally opens its annual meeting with a musical 

prelude. This yearõs prelude varies from organ 

performances of the past. The Wachovia His-

torical Societyõs entertainment features 19th-

century parlor music composed by Salem Fe-

male Academy instructors and sisters Louisa, 

Lisetta, and Amelia Van Vleck. Often described 

as the most engaging women in Moravian mu-

sical history, the Van Vleck sisters were born 

into a family of Moravian musicians spanning 

several generations. Their music represents the 

role music played in the education and life of 

Moravians, a tradition of both the sacred and 

secular. Music was an essential part of  

Moravian education for girls at the Salem Female Academy. The talented Van Vleck sisters taught and 

composed for their students and community. Their home at 427 South Main Street in Winston-Salem 

housed performances, events that always promised an evening of delight. The Van Vleck sistersõ music is 

included in the more than 10,000 musical works, preserved for its importance, depth, and breadth by  

the Moravian Music Foundation in Winston -Salem, NC and Bethlehem, PA. To learn more about the 

Van Vleck sisters and the Moravian Music Foundation, visit the Foundationõs website: www. moravi-

anmusic.org.  This yearõs prelude is under the direction of two North Carolina University School of the 

Arts professors, Glenn Siebert and Robert Rocco. Mr. Siebert is a tenor who has performed leading op-

eratic works and featured symphonic performances with many of our nationõs acclaimed operas and 

symphonies. He is featured on many recordings applauded by critics and founder of the Magnolia Ba-

roque Festival and Director of Music for Home Moravian Church. Dr. Rocco is a pianist and harpsi-

chordist with degrees in musical performance from Carnegie Mellon, Yale University, the American 

Conservatory at Fontainebleau as well as the Mozarteum in Salzburg. Both Glenn and Robert are 

pleased to be performing music from the Van Vleck sistersõ repertoire and value their work as a cross-

section of musical culture.  Be sure to tune in to the livestream on October 19 at 7:15 p.m.  

                              ÐWT by Victoria Remishofsky                                                                
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¥ In Memoriam   ¥ 

William òBilló Walton Phillips, Jr. 

June 12, 1943ñJuly 25, 2021 

Memorial Service held on August 21, 2021, High Point, NC. 

Bill was a current member of the WHS Board of Directors, former Society President,  

and a former Advisory Member of the Board.  

Bill Phillips was a natural for the Board of Directors of the Wachovia His-

torical Society and served for the last 12 years intermittently in that capacity 

and one term as President. As an eighth generation descendant of Adam 

Spach, he was serving on WHSõs Properties Committee, involved in the Adam 

Spach Park Project, when he passed away.  Bill was an ongoing student of ge-

nealogy and history, and one would often find him immersed in the library 

doing research.  But his scope of knowledge was not limited to just Moravian 

history as he served throughout his illustrious life on historical committees 

throughout Piedmont, North Carolina. Born in 1943 in Guilford County, Bill 

attended then High Point College, went on to serve in the US Marine Reserves 

until 1972 after which he was the Gubernatorial appointee as NC Deputy Sec-

retary of Crime Control and Public Safety and served until retirement.  As his 

ongoing passion was history,  Bill possessed an expert knowledge of Guilford County as well as state 

history.  He served on the Boards of the High Point Museum Guild and the High Point Historical Socie-

ty,  serving as President of both.  In 2017, he received the highest honor bestowed by the High Point 

Historical Society, the Mary Lib Joyce Award, for his dedication and service to the Society.  Bill was a 

volunteer for the High Point Library and was involved with the Restoration Committee for the Old 

Guilford Courthouse (the Lindsay House) project.  In Davidson County, Bill was on the Yadkin River 

Park Committee which encompasses the preservation and restoration of Fort York and the Wilcox 

Bridge connecting Davidson and Rowan Counties and the creation of a tourist attraction for the 10,000

- year history of the Indian Trading Ford at the park location on the Yadkin River. Personally, Bill al-

ways had an interesting history story to tell through his breakfast clubs and with friends.  There was no 

òexclusiveó attitude with Bill.  He loved reaching out and encouraging people to join in and be a part 

of whatever preservation cause in which he was involved and loved getting people appointed to 

Boards or committees. Bill will be greatly missed by his many friends across North Carolina and espe-

cially by the Board of Wachovia Historical Society. ÐWT   by Michelle DeLapp  
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